
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 TOWN OF GREAT BARRINGTON 
 MASSACHUSETTS 
 __________ 
 
 OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

Town Hall, 334 Main Street 
Great Barrington, MA 01230 

 
Telephone: (413) 528-1619 x2900 
                         Fax: (413) 528-2290 

 
 

Mark Pruhenski 
Town Manager 
 
E-mail: mpruhenski@townofgb.org 
www.townofgb.org 

 
Selectboard Meeting via Zoom and in person at 334 Main Street 
Great Barrington MA Order of Agenda for Monday January 22, 

2024, at 6:00 PM 

Please click the link below to join 
the webinar: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/860487
27526  

Webinar ID: 860 4872 7526 
Dial-in, audio-only: (929) 205 6099 

 
Pursuant to Governor Baker’s March 12, 2020 Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 
30A,§18, and Governor Healey’s March 29, 2023 Revised Order extending remote participation by all members in any 
meeting of a public body, this meeting of the Selectboard will be conducted both in-person and via remote 
participation to the greatest extent possible. Specific information and the general guidelines for remote participation by 
members of the public and/or parties with a right and/or requirement to attend this meeting can be found on town’s 
website, at www.townofgb.org. For this meeting, members of the public and committee members may attend the 
meeting in person, or, for those who wish to do so remotely may by following the instructions at the top of this agenda. 
For those who are not in-person every effort will be made to ensure that the public can adequately access the 
proceedings in real time, via technological means. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER SELECTBOARD REGULAR MEETING 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

a. Selectboard and Board of Health Joint Meeting – December 7th, 2023 
b. Selectboard Meeting – December 12th, 2023 
c. Selectboard Meeting Executive Session – November 6th, 2023 

 
3. SELECTBOARD’S ANNOUNCEMENTS/STATEMENTS 

 
4. TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

a. Housatonic Water Works 
b. Fiscal Year 2025 Budget Season 

 
5. LICENSES AND PERMITS 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

http://www.townofgb.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86048727526
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86048727526
http://www.townofgb.org/


 

a. Pole petition, work order number #30851677. Request to install 1 
SO pole on Pleasant Street beginning at a point approximately 130 
feet east of the centerline of the intersection of Highland Street and 
continuing approximately 60 feet in a South-West direction. 
National Grid requesting to install (1) utility pole within public 
right-of-way. New utility is at the request of the Town and will 
provide electric service for a park in Housatonic. Also for 
permission to lay and maintain underground laterals, cables, and 
wires in the above or intersecting public ways for the purpose of 
making connections with such poles and buildings as each of said 
petitioners may desire for distributing purposes. 

i. Open Public Hearing 
ii. Explanation of the Project 

iii. Public comments, speak in favor or opposition 
iv. Questions from the Selectboard 
v. Comments from other Boards 

vi. Close Public Hearing 
vii. Selectboard discussion 

viii. Motion to continue/deny/grant 
 

7. PREVIOUS BUSINESS 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
a. W.E.B. Du Bois Legacy Committee- 2024 Festival Update 
b. W.E.B. Du Bois Legacy Committee- Committee appointments 
c. Vote to submit a 2024 District Local Technical Assistance 

application to the Berkshire Regional Planning Commission 
d. Letter of request from Todd & Weld LLP for an independent 

investigation into the December 8th , 2023 complaint and response 
by the Great Barrington Police Department 

e. Annual Town Manager Performance Evaluation - discuss timeline/process 
f. FY2025 Budget Policy 

 
9. CITIZEN SPEAK TIME 

Citizen Speak Time is an opportunity for the Selectboard to listen to 
residents. Topics of particular concern or importance may be placed 
on a future agenda for discussion. This time is reserved for town 
residents only unless otherwise permitted by the chair, and speakers 
are limited to 3 minutes each. 

10. SELECTBOARD’S TIME 
 

11. MEDIA TIME 
 

12. CONVENE INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION (and not return to open session) 
a. Executive Session under MGL Ch. 30A, sec. 21(a) for the 

following purpose: (3) To discuss strategy with respect to 



 

litigation, regarding Housatonic Water Works. And, (6) To 
consider the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real estate, 
regarding Housatonic Water Works. 

i. Motion: Move that the Board meet in executive session 
pursuant to MGL Ch. 30A sec. 21(a) for the following 
purpose: (3) To discuss strategy with respect to 
Housatonic Water Works because an open discussion may 
have a detrimental effect on the litigation position of the 
Board. And, (6) to consider the purchase, exchange, lease 
or value of real estate, regarding Housatonic Water Works 
because an open discussion may have a detrimental effect 
on the negotiating position of the public body, and not to 
return to open session 

ii. Roll Call Vote 
b. Executive Session under MGL Ch. 30A, sec. 21 (a) for the 

following purpose: (7) To comply with, or act under the authority 
of, any general or special law or federal grant-in- aid 
requirements. 

i. Motion: Move that the Board meet in executive session 
pursuant to MGL Ch. 30A sec. 21 to approve executive 
session minutes from the following meetings: 

• February 12th, 2024. 
ii. Roll Call Vote 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

 

NEXT SELECTBOARD MEETING 
 

February 12, 2024 February 26, 2024 March 11, 2024 March 25, 2024 April 8, 2024 
 

Mark Pruhenski, Town Manager 
 

Pursuant to MGL. 7c. 30A sec. 20 (f), after notifying the chair of the public body, any person may make a video or audio 
recording of an open session of a meeting of a public body, or may transmit the meeting through any medium. At the 
beginning of the meeting, the chair shall inform other attendees of any such recordings. Any member of the public wishing 
to speak at the meeting must receive permission of the chair. The listings of agenda items are those reasonably 
anticipated by the chair, which may be discussed at the meeting. Not all items listed may in fact be discussed and other 
items not listed may be brought up for discussion to the extent permitted by law. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda 4 b. 



Agenda  6 a.













EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

TITLE: Application to the Berkshire Regional Planning Commission (BRPC) for District Local 
Technical Assistance (DLT A) grants 

BACKGROUND: The BRPC receives funds from the state each year to provide technical assistance 
to communities on eligible projects. Communities do not receive the funds directly; rather, BPRC 

receives the funding and their staff then assists the Town with the work, providing the time and/or 
expertise that the Town does not have. Some examples of past DLT A projects in Great Barrington include 

a the 40R Smart Growth Overlay District, a Housing Needs Study, zoning review in Housatonic, Master 

Plan technical assistance including development sites. Proposals are simple one-page narratives. 

This year Great Barrington will seek DL TA for assistance to update the Open Space and Recreation Plan. 
The previous OSRP expired in 2018, and update efforts in 2019-2020 stalled with the onset of COVID. 

An updated OSRP is important as it allows the Town the ability to apply for State grant funding for parks 
improvements and open space projects. 

This project involves public meetings, stakeholder meetings, GIS mapping, and data review. The 

Planning Dept will provide assistance as well. 

The application must be signed by the Chief Elected Official of the Town. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

RECOMMENDATION: 

WRITTEN BY: 

APPROVED BY: 

Authorize the Chairman to sign the DL TA application. 

Agenda 8 c.









Agenda  8 d. 











Town of Great Barrington 

Town Manager Performance Evaluation 

period of January 1, 2023 through 

December 31, 2023 

Selectboard Member’s Name 

Each member of the Selectboard should complete this evaluation form, sign it in the space below, and return it 

to the Selectboard Chair.  Evaluations will be summarized and included on a future Selectboard meeting. 

Selectboard Member’s Signature Date Submitted 

1

Agenda 8 e.



INSTRUCTIONS 

This evaluation form contains ten categories of evaluation criteria. Each category contains a statement to describe 

a behavior standard in that category. For each statement, use the following scale to indicate your rating of the Town 

manager’s performance. 

5 = Excellent (almost always exceeds the performance standard) 

4 = Above average (generally exceeds the performance standard) 

3 = Average (generally meets the performance standard) 

2 = Below average (usually does not meet the performance standard) 

1 = Poor (rarely meets the performance standard) 

Any item left blank will be interpreted as a score of “3 = Average” 

This evaluation form also contains a provision for entering narrative comments, including an opportunity to enter 

responses to specific questions and an opportunity to list any comments you believe appropriate and pertinent to 

the rating period. Please write legibly.  

Leave all pages of this evaluation form attached. Initial each page. Sign and date the cover page. On the date space 

of the cover page, enter the date the evaluation form was submitted. All evaluations presented prior to the deadline 

identified on the cover page will be summarized into a performance evaluation to be presented by the Selectboard 

to the Town manager as part of the agenda for the meeting indicated on the cover page. 

PERFORMANCE CATEGORY SCORING 

1. INDIVIDUAL CHARACTERISTICS

Diligent and thorough in the discharge of duties, “self-starter” 

Exercises good judgment 

Displays enthusiasm, cooperation, and will to adapt 

Mental and physical stamina appropriate for the position 

Exhibits composure, appearance and attitude appropriate for executive position 

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

2



2. PROFESSIONAL SKILLS AND STATUS

Maintains knowledge of current developments affecting the practice of local government management 

Demonstrates a capacity for innovation and creativity 

Anticipates and analyzes problems to develop effective approaches for solving them 

Willing to try new ideas proposed by Selectboard members and/or staff 

Sets a professional example by handling affairs of the public office in a fair and impartial manner  

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

3. RELATIONS WITH ELECTED MEMBERS OF THE SELECTBOARD

Carries out directives of the body as a whole as opposed to those of any one member or minority group 

Sets meeting agendas that reflect the guidance of the Selectboard and avoids unnecessary involvement in 
administrative actions 

Disseminates complete and accurate information equally to all members in a timely manner 

Assists by facilitating decision making without usurping authority 

Responds well to requests, advice, and constructive criticism 

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

4. POLICY EXECUTION

Implements Selectboard actions in accordance with the intent of council 

Supports the actions of the Selectboard after a decision has been reached, both inside and outside the 
organization 

Understands, supports, and enforces local government’s laws, policies, and ordinances 

Reviews ordinance and policy procedures periodically to suggest improvements to their effectiveness 

Offers workable alternatives to the Selectboard for changes in law or policy when an existing policy or 
ordinance is no longer practical  

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

3



5. REPORTING

Provides regular information and reports to the Selectboard concerning matters of importance to the 
local government, using the Town charter as guide 

Responds in a timely manner to requests from the Selectboard for special reports 

Takes the initiative to provide information, advice, and recommendations to the Selectboard on matters 
that are non-routine and not administrative in nature 

Reports produced by the manager are accurate, comprehensive, concise and written to their intended 
audience 

Produces and handles reports in a way to convey the message that affairs of the organization are open 
to public scrutiny  

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

6. CITIZEN RELATIONS

Responsive to requests from citizens 

Demonstrates a dedication to service to the community and its citizens 

Maintains a nonpartisan approach in dealing with the news media 

Meets with and listens to members of the community to discuss their concerns and strives to understand 
their interests 

Gives an appropriate effort to maintain citizen satisfaction with Town services 

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

7. STAFFING

Recruits and retains competent personnel for staff positions 

Applies an appropriate level of supervision to improve any areas of substandard performance 

Stays accurately informed and appropriately concerned about employee relations 

Professionally manages the compensation and benefits plan 

Promotes training and development opportunities for employees at all levels of the organization 

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

4



8. SUPERVISION

Encourages heads of departments to make decisions within their jurisdictions with minimal Town  
manager involvement, yet maintains general control of operations by providing the right amount of 
communication to the staff 

Instills confidence and promotes initiative in subordinates through supportive rather than restrictive 
controls for their programs while still monitoring operations at the department level 

Develops and maintains a friendly and informal relationship with the staff and work force in general, yet 
maintains the professional dignity of the Town manager’s office 

Sustains or improves staff performance by evaluating the performance of staff members at least annually, 
setting goals and objectives for them, periodically assessing their progress, and providing appropriate 
feedback 

Encourages teamwork, innovation, and effective problem-solving among the staff members 

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

9. FISCAL MANAGEMENT

Prepares a balanced budget to provide services at a level directed by council 

Makes the best possible use of available funds, conscious of the need to operate the local government 
efficiently and effectively 

Prepares a budget and budgetary recommendations in an intelligent and accessible format 

Ensures actions and decisions reflect an appropriate level of responsibility for financial planning and 
accountability 

Appropriately monitors and manages fiscal activities of the organization 

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

10. COMMUNITY

Shares responsibility for addressing the difficult issues facing the Town 

Avoids unnecessary controversy 

Cooperates with neighboring communities and the county 

Helps the council address future needs and develop adequate plans to address long term trends 

Cooperates with other regional, state and federal government agencies  

Add the values from above and enter the subtotal ÷ 5 = score for this category 

5



NARRATIVE EVALUATION 

What would you identify as the manager’s strength(s), expressed in terms of the principle results achieved during 
the rating period? 

What performance area(s) would you identify as most critical for improvement? 

What constructive suggestions or assistance can you offer the manager to enhance performance? 

What other comments do you have for the manager; e.g., priorities, expectations, goals or objectives for the new 
rating period? 

6



1 

Great Barrington Budget & Financial Policy for Fiscal Year 2025 

Budget & Financial Policy 

The Town of Great Barrington will manage municipal finances wisely.  This will include planning for 
adequate funding to:  

1) Provide and maintain public services and facilities at a level that will ensure public well-
being and safety;
2) Comply with all State and local by-laws, rules, and regulations; and
3) Meet the strategic priorities of the Town.

The budget and financial goals set forth by the Town Selectboard and the Finance Committee in the 
policy document outline the priorities and objectives of the Town and provide agreed-upon financial 
guidelines to be used in the preparation and review of the annual budget. 

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 
• Ensure public safety.
• Ensure public health.
• Maintain a strong local economy.
• Strive for a high quality of life.
• Seek environmental sustainability.
• Ensure the fiscal stability of the Town.
• Maintain public infrastructure.
• Support affordable housing
• Follow Great Barrington’s Master Plan.

FINANCIAL GOALS 
• Maintain adequate financial resources to sustain municipal services in the short and long term.
• Respond to the changes in the economy and meet the priority needs of the Town.
• Provide quality services efficiently and on a cost-effective basis.
• Maintain our top-level bond rating.
• Work to keep the overall tax levy reasonable in consideration of other priorities and goals.1

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICY 
Revenue 

• Services provided may not exceed available resources.
• Process must provide quality estimates of anticipated revenue.
• Process must anticipate any changes in revenue in upcoming years.
• Seek to diversify revenue sources.
• Estimate available resources including state funds, local funds, fees, grants and other sources.

Real Estate Tax 
• Town should restrict levy to a 2.5% increase over the prior year levy limit adjusted for new

construction growth and net debt and capital exclusions, as per Mass General Law.
• Proposed budget to not exceed legal property tax levy. Evaluate estimated tax rate based on

level of affordability including average and median income; average and median value of real
property and the cost of living.

1 For further information, see ‘Tax Levy Considerations’ in Financial Policy Manual, Town of Great Barrington, 
Prepared by Division of Local Services Technical Assistance Bureau , June 2020, page 2:  
https://www.mass.gov/doc/greatbarrington-ccc-policies-june-2020/download 

Agenda 8 f.



2 

Free Cash and Reserves 
• The Town will monitor overall general fund reserves (free cash and stabilization funds) as a

percentage of the annual operating budget. The relative percentage and sufficiency of these
will be evaluated relative to guidance from the state, historical trends and other factors.

• If the Town generates free cash consistently higher than historical trends and guidance from
the state, the Town Manager will closely examine future budget proposals to determine if
adjustments are appropriate.

User Fees 
• Establish user fees and other non-property tax revenues to recoup, to the extent possible, the

costs of supplying a particular service.
• Review current department fee structures and charges for services periodically to determine if

they reflect the cost of the service and are also reasonable and affordable fees.

Debt Management 
• Allow no borrowing to fund operational programs
• Debt service payments may not require the elimination of essential Town services
• Ensure that the Town’s general obligation debt ratio not exceed 50% of statutory limit

(5% of equalized valuation).
• Exempt from Proposition 2½ any long-term capital debt for municipal buildings, WWTP

improvements, fire apparatus acquisition, and school facilities improvements.

Service Delivery 
• Manage financial resources through internal controls.
• Establish operation practices that minimize the cost of government and financial risk.
• Provide efficient public services.
• Minimize the cost of administration.
• Identify and measure performance outcomes.
• Review the level of services and standards annually.

Guidelines for The Budget Preparation Process 
• The Town budget will be estimated in accordance with municipal code and applicable state law.

The budget is based on separate funds set forth from anticipated revenues and expenditures for
the General Fund and the Enterprise Fund.

• The annual operating budget will contain complete financial statements that show outstanding
obligations of the municipality, cash on hand to the credit of each fund, funds received from all
sources during the preceding year, funds available from all sources during the ensuing year,
revenue estimates to cover expenses in the proposed budget and the estimated tax rate required
to fund the proposed budget.

The budget preparation and review process shall include the following steps: 
1. Review and approve Finance Policy
2. Distribute Budget Books:

a. Forecast Revenues.
b. Updated Capital Plan.
c. Review Department Budgets.

3. Recommended Projects Proposed for CPA Funds.
4. Participate in BHRSD joint budget meeting with Stockbridge and West Stockbridge.
5. Hold Budget Workshop Meetings. Hold Public Hearing.

The Selectboard and the Finance Committee will jointly set the dates for the above budget meetings. 



3 

The following will be done to ensure there is community engagement in the budget process: 
1) Provide on-line access to budget information.
2) Provide printed budget books for the public at the libraries.
3) Provide a digital budget book on the Town website.
4) Hold open meetings and hearing.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES 
• The Town Manager will prepare the budget for review by the Selectboard and the Finance

Committee.
• The Town Manager may propose significant reorganizational changes and provide alternative

ways to deliver services within the proposed budget.
• Performance objectives and goals will be identified and assessed.
• The Town Manager may propose elimination of services in the budget if it is not needed or

cost-effective and/or propose new services as needed.
• Any service reductions shall be noted in the budget presentation.
• Salaries and employee insurance contributions shall be set in the Fiscal Year budget pursuant to

the Town’s collective bargaining units and/or those already approved via a negotiated
settlement and for non-represented personnel as authorized by the Town Manager.

For any proposed new initiatives, the Town Manager will: 
1) Explain and justify the new needs(s).
2) Identify alternatives to what is being proposed and the pros and cons.
3) Identify the cost and benefit of the proposed alternative.
4) Identify financing source(s) to pay for new need.
5) New need(s) include: any expansion of municipal services necessary; any additional staff

and any additional resources needed to meet service needs or expanded service needs.

TOWN BUDGET FORMAT  
The following will be done to ensure that the budget information is provided in a format that is clear, 
accurate and complete. 

1. Operating Budget Process:
• The Town Manager will request that Departments submit proposed budgets with operational

plans and reports.  Background information will include department goals and objectives,
strategic initiatives, summary of activities, and level of service.

• The Town Manager will review methods of operation, program service delivery, and
expenditure of resources inclusive of manpower allocation to ensure maximum efficiency of the
Town.

2. The Budget Book:
• The Town Manager will provide complete financial statements in the Budget Book to include:

o Outstanding obligations and anticipated new borrowings.
o Cash on hand.
o Funds received from prior year.
o Sources of funds from prior year.
o Estimated revenues.
o Estimated expenses.
o Estimated tax levy.
o Estimated tax rate.
o Estimated user fees for services.

• The Town Manager will also provide a Capital Budget Report to include:
o The Town defines a capital project as having an overall expenditure of $15,000 and a life

expectancy in excess of 3 years.



4 

o The Town’s annual budget will include a capital plan that identifies work to be started
within that fiscal year.

o The budget shall include a five-year Capital Improvement Plan for all Town assets.
o Each year, the Selectboard and the Finance Committee will review the five-year Capital

Improvement Plan to identify the future upcoming needs, review any changes to the
schedule, cost estimate or sources of funding.

o Operational costs associated with any new equipment or infrastructure will be identified.
o The capital budget report will include the Debt Schedule broken down by department and

function and a 10-year history be provided if possible.
o Identify a funding plan that reflects available State funds, grants, bonds and tax levy dollars

to finance each project.
• The Town Manager shall prepare a budget for the Enterprise Fund that maintains it as a self-  

    supporting fund, without a property tax transfer.
o The Enterprise Fund budget will include a report on sewer fees and rate structure.

3. Other Information/Reports
• If deemed necessary and appropriate for adequate review of the proposed budget, the Finance

Committee and/or Selectboard may request that the Town Manager include, if possible,
supplemental materials either in the Budget Book or in a separate report/document presented at
a budget meeting or at a separate meeting. These may include, but are not limited to:

o Historical Financial Information
▪ Estimated Local Receipts
▪ Free Cash sources and uses
▪ Tax Levy and Tax Rate
▪ Special Articles, individual and totals
▪ Aggregated data regarding property tax collections, such as collected/payment

plan/delinquencies for last 3-5 years
▪ History of various reserve accounts, i.e., stabilization, capital stabilization, “health

insurance”.
▪ Five-year history of long-term and short-term debt
▪ Schedule of Authorized but Unissued Debt, including changes from prior years

o Financial Projections
▪ Show 5-year projections of LT debt including approved future borrowings
▪ Projected Debt Service payments

o Summary Report on Expenditures for Employee Medical (current and Retired “OPEB”)
and Pension Benefits
▪ Five year history and projected (if available)
▪ Review funding for future retiree medical benefits (OPEB Trust)
▪ Pension Fund summary report
▪ What percentage of the obligation is funded

Approved at December19, 2023 Finance Committee Meeting 


	GB Fin  Budget Policy FY 2025 - SB 1.22.24 item 8 f..pdf
	STRATEGIC PRIORITIES
	FINANCIAL GOALS
	FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT POLICY
	TOWN BUDGET FORMAT


	1: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	total: 0
	category total: 0

	2: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	total: 0
	category total: 0

	3: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	total: 0
	category total: 0

	4: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	total: 0
	category total: 0

	5: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	total: 0
	category total: 0

	6: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	total: 0
	category total: 0

	7: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	total: 0
	category total: 0

	8: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	total: 0
	category total: 0

	9: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	total: 0
	category total: 0

	10: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	total: 0
	category total: 0

	N: 
	1: 
	3: 
	2: 
	4: 

	Selectboard Member's Name: 
	Date Submitted_af_date: 


